

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

Fifty-eighth Legislative Assembly

* * * * *

Bismarck, April 15, 2003

The House convened at 8:00 a.m., with Speaker Wentz presiding.

The prayer was offered by Rev. Rick Fossum, McCabe United Methodist Church, Bismarck.

The roll was called and all members were present except Representatives Ruby, Sitte, Wald, Weisz, Williams, and Zaiser.

A quorum was declared by the Speaker.

MOTION

REP. BERG MOVED that HB 1047 and HB 1050 be moved to the bottom of the calendar, which motion prevailed.

CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

REP. SEVERSON MOVED that the conference committee report on Engrossed HB 1179 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

Engrossed HB 1179, as amended, was placed on the Eleventh order.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

HB 1179: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 26.1-02-27 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to disclosing nonpublic personal information.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 88 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 6 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Amerman; Bellew; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boe; Boehning; Boucher; Brusegaard; Carlisle; Carlson; Clark; DeKrey; Delmore; Delzer; Devlin; Dosch; Drovdal; Eckre; Ekstrom; Froelich; Froseth; Galvin; Glassheim; Grande; Grosz; Gulleson; Haas; Hanson; Hawken; Headland; Herbel; Hunskor; Iverson; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Kasper; Keiser; Kelsch, R.; Kelsh, S.; Kempenich; Kerzman; Kingsbury; Klein, F.; Klein, M.; Klemin; Koppelman; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Maragos; Martinson; Meier; Metcalf; Monson; Mueller; Nelson; Nicholas; Niemeier; Norland; Nottestad; Onstad; Pietsch; Pollert; Porter; Potter; Price; Rennerfeldt; Sandvig; Schmidt; Severson; Skarphol; Solberg; Svedjan; Thoreson; Thorpe; Tieman; Timm; Uglem; Warner; Warnke; Weiler; Wieland; Wikenheiser; Winrich; Wrangham; Speaker Wentz

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Ruby; Sitte; Wald; Weisz; Williams; Zaiser

Engrossed HB 1179, as amended, passed and the title was agreed to.

CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

REP. DROVDAL MOVED that the conference committee report on Engrossed HB 1340 as printed on HJ page 1107 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

Engrossed HB 1340, as amended, was placed on the Eleventh order.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

HB 1340: A BILL for an Act to provide for the development and enforcement of wind turbine reclamation standards by the public service commission and for the termination of wind energy development leases.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 3 YEAS, 86 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 5 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Brusegaard; Klein, M.; Klemin

NAYS: Aarsvold; Amerman; Bellew; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boe; Boehning; Boucher; Carlisle; Carlson; Clark; DeKrey; Delmore; Delzer; Devlin; Dosch; Drovdal; Eckre; Ekstrom; Froelich; Froseth; Galvin; Glassheim; Grande; Grosz; Gulleeson; Haas; Hanson; Hawken; Headland; Herbel; Hunskor; Iverson; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Kasper; Keiser; Kelsch, R.; Kelsh, S.; Kempenich; Kerzman; Kingsbury; Klein, F.; Koppelman; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Maragos; Martinson; Meier; Metcalf; Monson; Mueller; Nelson; Nicholas; Niemeier; Norland; Nottestad; Onstad; Pietsch; Pollert; Porter; Potter; Price; Rennerfeldt; Sandvig; Schmidt; Severson; Skarphol; Solberg; Svedjan; Thoreson; Thorpe; Tieman; Timm; Uglem; Warner; Warnke; Weiler; Wieland; Wikenheiser; Williams; Winrich; Wrangham; Speaker Wentz

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Ruby; Sitte; Wald; Weisz; Zaiser

Engrossed HB 1340, as amended, lost.

MOTION

REP. BERG MOVED that HB 1047 be laid over one legislative day, which motion prevailed.

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

HB 1245, as engrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. J. Lee, Erbele, Fairfield and Reps. Devlin, Weisz, Sandvig) recommends that the **SENATE RECEDE** from the Senate amendments on HJ page 1106, adopt amendments as follows, and place HB 1245 on the Seventh order:

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on page 1106 of the House Journal and pages 912 and 913 of the Senate Journal and that Engrossed House Bill No. 1245 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to create and enact a new subsection to section 43-12.1-04 and four new sections to chapter 43-12.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to nursing education, practice standards, licensure, and continuing education; to amend and reenact sections 43-12.1-01 and 43-12.1-02, subsection 2 of section 43-12.1-04, sections 43-12.1-06, 43-12.1-08, 43-12.1-09, 43-12.1-10, 43-12.1-11, and 43-12.1-15 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to education and licensure of nurses; to provide a penalty; to provide for application; and to provide an expiration date.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 43-12.1-01 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

43-12.1-01. Statement of policy Scope. ~~The legislative assembly finds that the practice of nursing is directly related to the public welfare of the citizens of the state of North Dakota and is subject to regulation and control in the public interest to assure that qualified, competent practitioners and high quality standards are available. The legislative assembly recognizes that the practice of nursing is continually evolving and responding to changes within health care patterns and systems and recognizes the existence of. There are overlapping functions within the practice of nursing and other providers of health care.~~

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 43-12.1-02 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

43-12.1-02. Definitions. In this chapter, unless the context ~~or subject matter~~ otherwise requires:

1. "Advanced practice registered nurse" means ~~a person~~ an individual who holds a current license to practice in this state as an advanced practice registered nurse ~~and either has a graduate degree with a nursing focus or has completed the educational requirements in effect when the person was initially licensed.~~
2. "Board" means the North Dakota board of nursing.

3. "Licensed practical nurse" means ~~a person~~ an individual who holds a current license to practice in this state as a licensed practical nurse ~~and either has an associate degree with a major in nursing or has completed the educational requirements in effect when the person was initially licensed.~~
4. "Nurse" means ~~any person~~ an individual who is currently licensed as an advanced practice registered nurse, registered nurse, or licensed practical nurse.
5. "Nursing" means the performance of acts utilizing specialized knowledge, skills, and abilities for people in a variety of settings. Nursing ~~The term~~ includes the following acts, which may not be deemed to include acts of medical diagnosis or treatment or the practice of medicine as defined in chapter 43-17:
 - a. The maintenance of health and prevention of illness.
 - b. Diagnosing human responses to actual or potential health problems.
 - c. Providing supportive and restorative care and nursing treatment, medication administration, health counseling and teaching, case finding and referral of ~~persons~~ individuals who are ill, injured, or experiencing changes in the normal health processes.
 - d. Administration, teaching, supervision, delegation, and evaluation of health and nursing practices.
 - e. Collaboration with other health care professionals in the implementation of the total health care regimen and execution of the health care regimen prescribed by a health care practitioner licensed under ~~title 43~~ the laws of this state.
6. "Prescriptive practices" means assessing the need for drugs, immunizing agents, or devices and writing a prescription to be filled by a licensed pharmacist.
7. "Registered nurse" means ~~a person~~ an individual who holds a current license to practice in this state as a registered nurse ~~and either has a baccalaureate degree with a major in nursing or has completed the educational requirements in effect when the person was initially licensed.~~
8. "Specialty practice registered nurse" means ~~a person~~ an individual who holds a current license to practice in this state as a specialty practice registered nurse ~~and has the educational preparation and national certification within a defined area of nursing practice.~~
9. "Transitional practical nurse license" means ~~a license issued by the board to a person who meets all of the requirements for licensure by endorsement as a licensed practical nurse, except the educational requirements.~~
10. "Transitional registered nurse license" means ~~a license issued by the board to a person who meets all of the requirements for licensure by endorsement as a registered nurse, except the educational requirements.~~
11. "Unlicensed assistive person" means an assistant to the nurse who regardless of title is authorized by the board to perform nursing interventions delegated and supervised by ~~a~~ licensed nurse.

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Subsection 2 of section 43-12.1-04 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

2. Students practicing nursing as a part of ~~a board-approved~~ an in-state nursing education program.

SECTION 4. A new subsection to section 43-12.1-04 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

Upon written notification to the board by an out-of-state nursing program, a student practicing nursing as a part of a nursing education program preparing for initial or advanced licensure as a registered nurse or licensed practical nurse which is approved by a board of nursing and is located in an institution of higher education that offers transferable credit.

SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Section 43-12.1-06 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

43-12.1-06. Qualifications of board members.

1. Each registered nurse must be an eligible voting resident of this state, possess an unencumbered registered nurse license under this chapter, and be currently engaged in practice as a registered nurse. A majority of the members under this subsection must be actively engaged in practice in a nurse-patient setting.
2. Each licensed practical nurse must be an eligible voting resident of this state, possess an unencumbered practical nurse license under this chapter, and be currently engaged in practice as a licensed practical nurse. A majority of the members under this subsection must be actively engaged in practice in a nurse-patient setting.
3. Each public member must be an eligible voting resident of this state and have no employment, professional license, or financial interest with any health care entity.
4. Each member appointed to the board shall maintain the qualifications for appointment for the duration of the appointment. The governor may remove any member of the board for cause upon recommendation of two-thirds of the members of the board.

SECTION 6. AMENDMENT. Section 43-12.1-08 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

43-12.1-08. ~~Powers and duties~~ Duties of the board.

1. The board shall regulate the practice of nursing ~~to assure that qualified competent practitioners and high quality standards are available.~~ Regulation of the ~~profession~~practice of nursing must ensure that ~~no~~ a person may not practice or offer to practice nursing or use titles of advanced practice registered nurse, specialty practice registered nurse, registered nurse, licensed practical nurse, or unlicensed assistive person, or titles of a similar nature which denote the practice of nursing to the general public unless licensed or registered as provided in this chapter.
2. The board shall:
 4. ~~a.~~ a. Enforce ~~the provisions of this chapter. The board has all of the duties, powers, and authority specifically granted by and necessary for the enforcement of this chapter.~~
 2. ~~b.~~ b. Adopt rules necessary to administer this chapter after collaborating and consulting with North Dakota nursing associations and other affected parties.
 3. ~~c.~~ c. Appoint and employ a ~~qualified~~ registered nurse to serve as executive director and approve any additional staff positions necessary to administer this chapter.
 4. ~~d.~~ d. Establish fees and receive all moneys collected under this chapter and authorize all expenditures necessary to conduct the business of the board. Any balance of fees after payment of expenditures must be used to administer this chapter.
 5. ~~Establish qualifications for nursing licensure and registration.~~
 6. ~~Establish standards for nursing education and practice and:~~

- a. ~~Collaborate and consult with the appropriate nursing organizations and other affected parties in the establishment of the standards; and~~
- b. ~~Consult with the medical profession in the establishment of prescriptive practice standards for advanced practice registered nurses. Prescriptive practices must be consistent with the scope of practice of the advanced practice registered nurse and include evidence of a collaborative agreement with a licensed physician.~~
- 7. ~~Periodically review and approve nursing education programs.~~
- 8. ~~License and register applicants and renew and reinstate licenses and registrations.~~
- 9. ~~Establish standards for assessing the competence of licensees and registrants continuing in or returning to practice.~~
- 40. e. Collect and analyze data regarding nursing education, nursing practice, and nursing resources.
- 44. f. Issue and renew limited licenses to individuals requiring accommodation to practice nursing.
- 42. g. Establish confidential programs for the rehabilitation of nurses with workplace impairments.
- 43. ~~Discipline applicants, licensees, and registrants for violating this chapter.~~
- 44. h. Establish a nursing student loan program funded by license fees to encourage ~~persons~~individuals to enter and advance in the nursing profession.
- 45. i. Establish a registry of ~~persons~~ individuals licensed or registered by the board.
- 46. ~~Collaborate and consult with the North Dakota nurses association, North Dakota licensed practical nurses association, and other nursing specialty groups prior to the adoption of rules.~~
- 47. j. Report annually to the governor and nursing profession regarding the regulation of nursing in the state.
- 48. k. Conduct and support projects pertaining to nursing education and practice.
- 49. l. Notify the board of pharmacy on an annual basis, or more frequent basis if necessary, of advanced practice registered nurses authorized to write prescriptions.
- 20. m. Adopt rules to allow nurses licensed by another state to receive short-term clinical education in North Dakota health care facilities.

SECTION 7. Two new sections to chapter 43-12.1 of the North Dakota Century Code are created and enacted as follows:

Nursing education programs.

- 1. The board shall adopt rules establishing standards for in-state nursing education programs leading to initial or advanced licensure. A nursing education program may not be provided in this state unless the board has approved the program. The board shall approve, review, and reapprove nursing education programs in this state. The board may not require a statement of intent as part of the approval process under this section.
- 2. The standards established under this section for a program leading to licensure as a licensed practical nurse:
 - a. Must allow for a program that offers two or more academic years of course study or the equivalent;

- b. Must allow for a program that offers less than two academic years of course study or the equivalent; and
 - c. May not allow for a program that offers less than one academic year of course study or the equivalent.
3. The standards established under this section for a program leading to licensure as a registered nurse:
- a. Must allow for a program that offers four or more academic years of course study or the equivalent;
 - b. Must allow for a program that offers less than four academic years of course study or the equivalent; and
 - c. May not allow for a program that offers less than two academic years of course study or the equivalent.

Nursing practice standards. The board shall adopt rules establishing standards for nursing practice. The board shall consult with the medical profession in the establishment of prescriptive practice standards for advanced practice registered nurses. Prescriptive practices must be consistent with the scope of practice of the advanced practice registered nurse and include evidence of a collaborative agreement with a licensed physician.

SECTION 8. AMENDMENT. Section 43-12.1-09 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

43-12.1-09. ~~Licensure—Registration~~ Initial licensure and registration.

- 1. The board shall license and register nursing applicants. The board shall adopt rules establishing qualifications for initial nursing licensure and registration.
- 2. Each applicant who successfully meets the requirements of this section is entitled to initial licensure or registration as follows:
 - 4- a. An applicant for licensure by examination to practice as a registered nurse or licensed practical nurse shall:
 - a- (1) Submit a completed application and appropriate fee as established by the board;
 - b- (2) Submit an official transcript showing completion of an in-state nursing education program or a board-approved out-of-state nursing education program preparing for the level of licensure sought;—and. The board shall adopt rules establishing standards for the approval of out-of-state nursing education programs. These standards for out-of-state programs must include consideration of whether the program is accredited by the national league for nursing accrediting commission, incorporated, or the commission on collegiate nursing education and whether the program meets the requirements of the state in which the program is provided.
 - e- (3) Pass an examination approved by the board.
- 2- b. An applicant for licensure by endorsement to practice as a registered nurse or licensed practical nurse shall:
 - a- (1) Submit a completed application and appropriate fee as established by the board;
 - b- (2) Submit an official transcript showing completion of a nursing education program equal to or exceeding the requirements for nursing education programs in place in this state at the time the applicant qualified for initial licensure;preparing for the level of licensure sought.

- e. (3) Submit proof of initial licensure by examination with the examination meeting ~~the state~~ North Dakota requirements for licensure examinations in effect at the time the applicant qualified for initial licensure; ~~and.~~
 - e. (4) Submit evidence of current unencumbered licensure in another state ~~or territory~~ or meet continued competency requirements as established by the board.
3. ~~If an applicant for licensure by endorsement does not meet the educational requirements for the appropriate level of licensure as established by the board, a transitional license may be issued. A transitional license may be issued and renewed according to board rules. Renewal requires proof of progression towards meeting the academic requirements or thirty hours of continuing education.~~
4. c. An applicant for licensure as an advanced practice registered nurse shall:
- a. (1) Submit a completed application and appropriate fee as established by the board; ~~.~~
 - b. (2) Submit evidence of appropriate education and current certification in an advanced nursing role by a national nursing organization meeting criteria as established by the board; ~~and.~~ An advanced practice registered nurse applicant must have a graduate degree with a nursing focus or must have completed the educational requirements in effect when the applicant was initially licensed.
 - e. (3) Possess or show evidence of application for a current unencumbered registered nurse license.
5. d. An applicant for licensure as an advanced practice registered nurse who completed an advanced nursing education program and was licensed or certified in advanced practice by another state before January 1, 2001, or who completed an advanced nursing education program and was licensed or certified as a women's health care nurse practitioner by another state before January 1, 2007, may apply for and receive an advanced practice license if that ~~person~~ applicant meets the requirements that were in place in this state at the time the applicant qualified for initial advanced practice licensure in that state.
6. e. An applicant for unlicensed assistive person registration shall:
- a. (1) Submit a completed application and the appropriate fee as established by the board; ~~and.~~
 - b. (2) Provide verification of appropriate training; ~~or~~ evidence of certification or evaluation in the performance of basic nursing interventions.
7. f. An applicant for licensure as a specialty practice registered nurse shall:
- a. (1) Submit a completed application and appropriate ~~fees~~ fee as established by the board; ~~.~~
 - b. (2) Submit evidence of appropriate education and current certification in a specialty nursing role by a national nursing organization meeting criteria as established by the board; ~~and.~~ A specialty practice registered nurse applicant must have the educational preparation and national certification within a defined area of nursing practice.
 - e. (3) Possess or show evidence of application for a current unencumbered registered nurse license.

SECTION 9. AMENDMENT. Section 43-12.1-10 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

43-12.1-10. License—Registration— Renewal of license or registration - Reactivation.

1. ~~A~~ The board shall renew a current license to practice as an advanced practice registered nurse, specialty practice registered nurse, registered nurse, or licensed practical nurse ~~must be issued upon proof that if the applicant~~ licensee submits a renewal application, submits the appropriate fee established by the board, and meets all requirements for licensure. If a person licensee does not renew a license before its expiration date the license expires, the board shall reactivate that license may be reinstated if that person licensee meets thereactivation requirements set by the board.
2. ~~A~~ The board shall renew the registration of an unlicensed assistive person may renew registration upon submission of if the registrant submits a renewal application, the appropriate fee established by the board, and documentation of competency by the employer or evidence of certification or evaluation. A lapsed unlicensed assistive person registration may be renewed reactivated upon submission of the application, payment of the appropriate fee established by the board, and documentation of competency or evidence of certification or evaluation.

SECTION 10. A new section to chapter 43-12.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

(Effective through September 30, 2003) Transition from transitional nurse licenses. Before October 1, 2003, the board shall issue a licensed practical nurse license or a registered nurse license to each individual who holds a license as a transitional practical nurse or a transitional registered nurse on August 1, 2003. A newly issued license under this section replaces the transitional license.

SECTION 11. A new section to chapter 43-12.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

Continuing education requirements. The board shall adopt rules requiring every nurse licensed under this chapter to fulfill continuing education requirements. Before the board may renew or reactivate a license, the licensee shall submit evidence to the board establishing that the required continuing education requirements have been met.

SECTION 12. AMENDMENT. Section 43-12.1-11 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

43-12.1-11. Duties of licensees and registrants. ~~Each person individual~~ licensed or registered by the board shall provide information requested by the board at the time of renewal or reactivation. Each person individual licensed or registered by the board shall report to the board any knowledge of the performance by others of those acts or omissions that are violations of this chapter or grounds for disciplinary action as set forth in section 43-12.1-14. Each licensee or registrant shall report to the board any judgment or settlement in a professional or occupational malpractice action to which the licensee or registrant is a party. Any person, other than a licensee or registrant alleged to have violated this chapter, participating in good faith in making a report, assisting in an investigation, or furnishing information to an investigator, is immune from any civil or criminal liability that otherwise may result from reporting required by this section. For the purpose of any civil or criminal proceeding the good faith of any person required to report under this section is presumed.

SECTION 13. AMENDMENT. Section 43-12.1-15 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

43-12.1-15. Violation - Penalties. ~~A person may not~~ It is a class B misdemeanor for a person to willfully:

1. Buy or sell, fraudulently obtain, or furnish any questions and answers used in the licensing examination for nurses, or assist others in the performance of these acts.
2. Buy or sell, fraudulently obtain, or furnish any record ~~which~~ that might enable a person an individual to obtain a license in this state or assist others in the performance of these acts.

3. Practice as an advanced practice registered nurse, a specialty practice registered nurse, a registered nurse, ~~or~~ a licensed practical nurse, or an unlicensed assistive person through use of a transcript from a school of nursing, diploma, certificate of registration, license, or record ~~which~~ that was fraudulently created or obtained.
4. Practice as an advanced practice registered nurse, a specialty practice registered nurse, a registered nurse, ~~or~~ a licensed practical nurse, or an unlicensed assistive person as defined by this chapter unless licensed to do so.
5. Conduct any education program preparing ~~a person~~ an individual for nursing licensure or registration unless the program has been approved ~~or~~ accepted by the board.
6. Employ a person to practice nursing or perform nursing interventions unless the person is licensed or registered by the board.

~~Any violation of this chapter is a class B misdemeanor.~~

SECTION 14. APPLICATION. Section 5 of this Act applies to any vacancy filled after July 31, 2003. The license renewal and reactivation requirements of section 11 of this Act are effective beginning with the 2005 licensure year."

Renumber accordingly

Engrossed HB 1245 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

REP. DEVLIN MOVED that the conference committee report on Engrossed HB 1245 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

Engrossed HB 1245, as amended, was placed on the Eleventh order.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

HB 1245: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new subsection to section 43-12.1-04 and four new sections to chapter 43-12.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to nursing education, practice standards, licensure, and continuing education; to amend and reenact sections 43-12.1-01 and 43-12.1-02, subsection 2 of section 43-12.1-04, sections 43-12.1-06, 43-12.1-08, 43-12.1-09, 43-12.1-10, 43-12.1-11, and 43-12.1-15 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to education and licensure of nurses; to provide a penalty; to provide for application; and to provide an expiration date.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 60 YEAS, 32 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Amerman; Bellew; Belter; Berg; Boehning; Boucher; Brusegaard; Carlson; Clark; DeKrey; Delzer; Devlin; Drovdal; Eckre; Froseth; Galvin; Grande; Gulleston; Hawken; Headland; Hunskor; Iverson; Johnson, D.; Kasper; Keiser; Kelsch, R.; Kempenich; Kingsbury; Klein, M.; Klemin; Koppelman; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Maragos; Monson; Nelson; Nicholas; Niemeier; Onstad; Pietsch; Pollert; Porter; Price; Rennerfeldt; Ruby; Sandvig; Schmidt; Severson; Skarphol; Solberg; Svedjan; Thoreson; Tieman; Timm; Uglem; Warner; Wikenheiser; Williams; Wrangham

NAYS: Bernstein; Boe; Carlisle; Delmore; Dosch; Ekstrom; Froelich; Glassheim; Grosz; Haas; Hanson; Herbel; Johnson, N.; Kelsch, S.; Kerzman; Klein, F.; Kroeber; Martinson; Meier; Metcalf; Mueller; Norland; Nottestad; Potter; Thorpe; Wald; Warnke; Weiler; Wieland; Winrich; Zaiser; Speaker Wentz

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Sitte; Weisz

Engrossed HB 1245, as amended, passed and the title was agreed to.

CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

REP. TIMM MOVED that the conference committee report on Engrossed SB 2010 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

REP. PRICE MOVED that the conference committee report on Engrossed SB 2083 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

REP. N. JOHNSON MOVED that the conference committee report on Engrossed SB 2249 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

REP. PRICE MOVED that the conference committee report on Engrossed SB 2029 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

Engrossed SB 2029, as amended, was placed on the Fourteenth order.

SECOND READING OF SENATE BILL

SB 2029: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new subsection to section 26.1-08-01, a new subdivision to subsection 4 of section 26.1-08-12, a new subdivision to subsection 10 of section 26.1-08-12, and a new subdivision to subsection 11 of section 26.1-08-12 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to health insurance coverage through the comprehensive health association of North Dakota; and to amend and reenact subdivision e of subsection 12 of section 26.1-08-12 and section 54-03-28 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to health insurance coverage through the comprehensive health association of North Dakota and legislative measures mandating health insurance coverage of services.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 88 YEAS, 3 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Amerman; Bellew; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boe; Boehning; Boucher; Brusegaard; Carlisle; Carlson; Clark; DeKrey; Delzer; Devlin; Dosch; Drovdal; Eckre; Froseth; Galvin; Glassheim; Grande; Grosz; Gullerson; Haas; Hanson; Hawken; Headland; Herbel; Hunskor; Iverson; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Kasper; Keiser; Kelsch, R.; Kelsh, S.; Kempenich; Kerzman; Kingsbury; Klein, F.; Klein, M.; Klemin; Koppelman; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Martinson; Meier; Metcalf; Monson; Mueller; Nelson; Nicholas; Niemeier; Norland; Nottestad; Onstad; Pietsch; Pollert; Porter; Potter; Price; Rennerfeldt; Ruby; Sandvig; Schmidt; Severson; Skarphol; Solberg; Svedjan; Thoreson; Thorpe; Tieman; Timm; Uglem; Wald; Warner; Warnke; Weiler; Wieland; Wikenheiser; Williams; Winrich; Wrangham; Zaiser; Speaker Wentz

NAYS: Delmore; Ekstrom; Froelich

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Maragos; Sitte; Weisz

Engrossed SB 2029, as amended, passed and the title was agreed to.

CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

REP. D. JOHNSON MOVED that the conference committee report on Engrossed SB 2135 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

Engrossed SB 2135, as amended, was placed on the Fourteenth order.

SECOND READING OF SENATE BILL

SB 2135: A BILL for an Act to provide for national certification of teachers; and to provide an appropriation.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 92 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Amerman; Bellew; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boe; Boehning; Boucher; Brusegaard; Carlisle; Carlson; Clark; DeKrey; Delmore; Delzer; Devlin; Dosch; Drovdal; Eckre; Ekstrom; Froelich; Froseth; Galvin; Glassheim; Grande; Grosz; Gullerson; Haas; Hanson; Hawken; Headland; Herbel; Hunskor; Iverson; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Kasper; Keiser; Kelsch, R.; Kelsh, S.; Kempenich; Kerzman; Kingsbury; Klein, F.; Klein, M.; Klemin; Koppelman; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Maragos; Martinson; Meier;

Metcalf; Monson; Mueller; Nelson; Nicholas; Niemeier; Norland; Nottestad; Onstad; Pietsch; Pollert; Porter; Potter; Price; Rennerfeldt; Ruby; Sandvig; Schmidt; Severson; Skarphol; Solberg; Svedjan; Thoreson; Thorpe; Tieman; Timm; Uglem; Wald; Warner; Warnke; Weiler; Wieland; Wikenheiser; Williams; Winrich; Wrangham; Zaiser; Speaker Wentz

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Sitte; Weisz

Reengrossed SB 2135, as amended, passed and the title was agreed to.

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

SB 2248, as engrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. Brown, Dever, Fairfield and Reps. Klemm, Sitte, Potter) recommends that the **HOUSE RECEDE** from the House amendments on SJ page 908, adopt amendments as follows, and place SB 2248 on the Seventh order:

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on page 908 of the Senate Journal and page 1004 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bill No. 2248 be amended as follows:

Page 2, replace lines 23 and 24 with "A completed application must be submitted"

Page 2, line 25, remove "received from applicants"

Page 2, line 26, replace "each" with "the"

Page 3, line 27, after "auditor" insert "either"

Page 3, line 28, after "instructions" insert "or send to the qualified elector the ballot and instructions by facsimile"

Renumber accordingly

Engrossed SB 2248 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

REP. KLEMIN MOVED that the conference committee report on Engrossed SB 2248 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

Engrossed SB 2248, as amended, was placed on the Fourteenth order.

SECOND READING OF SENATE BILL

SB 2248: A BILL for an Act to create and enact three new sections to chapter 16.1-07 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to providing absentee voting information to military and overseas voters, rejecting absentee ballots cast by military and overseas voters, and creating early voting precincts; and to amend and reenact subsection 2 of section 16.1-07-01 and sections 16.1-07-05, 16.1-07-06, 16.1-07-07, and 16.1-07-08 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to absentee voting for federal offices by citizens who have never lived in the United States, applications for absent voter's ballots, and absentee voting.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 92 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Amerman; Bellew; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boe; Boehning; Boucher; Brusegaard; Carlisle; Carlson; Clark; DeKrey; Delmore; Delzer; Devlin; Dosch; Drovdal; Eckre; Ekstrom; Froelich; Froseth; Galvin; Glassheim; Grande; Grosz; Guleson; Haas; Hanson; Hawken; Headland; Herbel; Hunskor; Iverson; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Kasper; Keiser; Kelsch, R.; Kelsh, S.; Kempenich; Kerzman; Kingsbury; Klein, F.; Klein, M.; Klemm; Koppelman; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Maragos; Martinson; Meier; Metcalf; Monson; Mueller; Nelson; Nicholas; Niemeier; Norland; Nottestad; Onstad; Pietsch; Pollert; Porter; Potter; Price; Rennerfeldt; Ruby; Sandvig; Schmidt; Severson; Skarphol; Solberg; Svedjan; Thoreson; Thorpe; Tieman; Timm; Uglem; Wald; Warner; Warnke; Weiler; Wieland; Wikenheiser; Williams; Winrich; Wrangham; Zaiser; Speaker Wentz

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Sitte; Weisz

Engrossed SB 2248, as amended, passed and the title was agreed to.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BRADLEY C. FAY, CHIEF CLERK)
MR. PRESIDENT: The House has adopted the conference committee report and subsequently passed: HB 1179.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BRADLEY C. FAY, CHIEF CLERK)
MR. PRESIDENT: The House has not adopted the conference committee report: HB 1035.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BRADLEY C. FAY, CHIEF CLERK)
MR. PRESIDENT: The Speaker has appointed Rep. Delmore to replace Rep. Eckre on the Conference Committee on HB 1035.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BRADLEY C. FAY, CHIEF CLERK)
MR. PRESIDENT: The House has adopted the conference committee report and subsequently failed: HB 1340.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BRADLEY C. FAY, CHIEF CLERK)
MR. PRESIDENT: The House has adopted the conference committee report and subsequently passed: HB 1245.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BRADLEY C. FAY, CHIEF CLERK)
MR. PRESIDENT: The House has adopted the conference committee report: SB 2083, SB 2249.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BRADLEY C. FAY, CHIEF CLERK)
MR. PRESIDENT: The House has adopted the conference committee report and subsequently passed: SB 2029, SB 2135, SB 2248.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BRADLEY C. FAY, CHIEF CLERK)
MR. PRESIDENT: The Speaker has signed: SB 2018, SB 2023, SB 2024, SB 2025, SB 2045, SB 2086, SB 2160, SB 2255, SB 2282, SB 2334.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BRADLEY C. FAY, CHIEF CLERK)
MR. PRESIDENT: The Speaker has signed and your signature is respectfully requested on: HB 1037, HB 1079, HB 1086, HB 1092, HB 1116, HB 1190, HB 1197, HB 1223, HB 1236, HB 1255, HB 1269, HB 1291, HB 1292, HB 1309, HB 1391, HB 1414, HB 1425, HB 1461, HB 1486.

DELIVERY OF ENROLLED BILLS AND RESOLUTIONS

The following resolutions were delivered to the Secretary of State for filing on April 15, 2003: HCR 3078, HCR 3079.

DELIVERY OF ENROLLED BILLS AND RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were delivered to the Governor for approval on April 15, 2003: HB 1006, HB 1008, HB 1014, HB 1043, HB 1051, HB 1088, HB 1112, HB 1123, HB 1438, HB 1504.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)
MR. SPEAKER: The Senate has adopted the conference committee reports and subsequently passed: HB 1264, HB 1372, HB 1397, and HCR 3037.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)
MR. SPEAKER: The Senate has adopted the conference committee report: HB 1009.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)
MR. SPEAKER: The Senate has adopted the conference committee report and subsequently passed: SB 2248.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)
MR. SPEAKER: The Senate has reconsidered the action whereby it adopted the conference committee report and subsequently passed SB 2190. Furthermore, The Senate has not adopted the conference committee report: SB 2190.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)
MR. SPEAKER: The Senate has adopted the conference committee report and subsequently failed to pass: SB 2308.

MOTION

REP. MONSON MOVED that the absent members be excused, which motion prevailed.

MOTION

REP. MONSON MOVED that the House be on the Fifth, Seventh, Ninth, Twelfth, and Sixteenth orders of business and at the conclusion of those orders, the House stand adjourned until 12:30 p.m., Wednesday, April 16, 2003, which motion prevailed.

The House stood adjourned pursuant to Representative Monson's motion.

BRADLEY C. FAY, Chief Clerk

